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UNITED STATESOF AMERICA
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

In the Matter of

ALTA BATESMEDICAL GROUP, INC,,

)
)
) DOCKET NO. C-4260
)
a California corporation. )
)

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federa Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
841 et seq. (“FTC Act”), and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federa
Trade Commission (“Commission”), having reason to believe that Alta Bates Medical Group,
Inc. (“ABMG”), herein sometimes referred to as “ Respondent,” has violated Section 5 of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 845, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues this Complaint stating its charges in that
respect as follows:

NATURE OF THE CASE

1. This matter concerns horizontal agreements among competing physicians, acting
through Respondent, to fixgosi@ahides{tengy3undent, to fix
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RESPONDENT'S OPERATION

11.  Sinceitsformation, ABMG has entered into contracts with payors for and on
behalf of its respective physician members, under which ABMG received capitated payments
from the payorsin exchange for the medical practices’ agreement to provide their professional
medical services to subscribers of the contracting payors. The capitated contracts provided to
payors, in addition to the physician services, an insurance guarantee component that all covered
physician services needed by subscribers of a payor’s program would be provided by ABMG'’s
physician members for the predetermined capitation charge, regardless of the actual quantity or
type of services needed and provided.

12.  The member physicians' participation in ABMG, and their offering of services
through ABMG'’ s capitated contracts, was not, however, the member physicians’ exclusive
method of selling their professional medical services. Rather, the member physicians also
continued to sell their medical servicesindividually, on afee-for-service basis, outside of
ABMG to individual patients and through contracts individually and directly entered into with

payors.
ANTICOMPETITIVE CONDUCT

13.  Sinceat least 2001, ABMG, acting as a combination of its physician members,
and in conspiracy with its members, has acted to restrain competition with respect to fee-for-
service contracts by, among other things, facilitating, entering into, and implementing
agreements, express or implied, to fix the prices and other terms at which they would contract
with payors; to engage in collective negotiations over terms and conditions of dealing with
payors; and to have ABMG members refrain from negotiating individually with payors or
contracting on terms other than those approved by ABMG.

Collective Negotiations with Payors

14. ABMG refersto itsfee-for-service contracting system as a*“messenger model.”
Competing physicians sometimes use a “ messenger” to facilitate their contracting with payors, in
ways that do not constitute an unlawful agreement on prices and other competitively significant
terms. Messenger arrangements can reduce contracting costs between payors and physicians.
For example, a payor may submit a contract offer to the messenger, with the understanding that
the messenger will transmit that offer to a group of physicians and inform the payor how many
physicians across speciaties accept the offer or have a counteroffer. Alternatively, the
messenger may receive authority from the individual physicians to accept contract offers that
meet certain criteria. A lawful messenger arrangement does not involve negotiation on prices or
other competitively significant terms and does not facilitate coordination among physicians on
their responses to contract offers. Additionally, alawful messenger arrangement does not
discourage physicians from dealing individually with a payor.

15.  Aspart of its fee-for-service contracting system, approximately 95 percent of
ABMG's physicians signed “ powers of attorney” (“POA™) granting ABMG authority to contract
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with PPO hedlth plans on their behalf. The POA states that the individual ABMG physician
appoints ABMG:

a To facilitate, execute, revise, modify, or amend an
agreement (“ Agreement”) with PPO networks that is consistent
with the financial and other language parameters identified by
PHY SICIAN.

b. To execute the Agreement on PHY SICIAN'S behal f
without further consultation with or authority of PHY SICIAN,
provided the Agreement meets the PHY SICIAN'S parameters.

16. Despite the POA provisions, ABMG did not rely on financial and other language
parameters identified by its individua physician members regarding what rates and/or terms they
would unilaterally accept. Instead, ABMG decided, on behalf of the group, what rates and/or
terms it used in its communications with the PPO health plans. Therefore, ABMG did not
employ alawful messenger arrangement as described in Paragraph 14.

17. Rather than employ alawful messenger arrangement, ABMG, on behalf of its
physician members, has orchestrated collective negotiations for fee-for-service contracts with
some payors who do business in and around Berkeley and Oa



E. Periodically providing its member physicians with alist of payorswith
which ABMG had negotiated contracts, and cautioned them about dealing
individually with payors, because the individual contracts may have less
favorable contract rates and/or terms. For example, during one
negotiation ABMG sent the following notice to its individual member
physicians:

Asagenera rule of caution, please scrutinize all
contract solicitations that are mailed to your office,
as many of these contracts do not represent the best
interests of physicians. In the event that you may
have signed these documents and returned them to
[the PPO], you may certainly contact [the PPQO] and
say that you did not mean to sign the agreement
because you should aready be participating through
ABMG and therefore the Individual Contract is
superfluous.

Concerted Refusal to Deal

19.  ABMG physicians and the Permanente Medical Group compete in the sale of
physician services to consumers in and around Berkeley and Oakland, California. Because the
Permanente Medical Group exclusively sellsits physicians' servicesto Kaiser Foundation
Health Plans, this competition occurs when a consumer chooses either a Kaiser Foundation
Heath Plan HMO, which allows the subscriber to access only the Permanente Medical Group, or
an open-panel payor.

20. In 2006, a payor, Kaiser Permanente Insurance Corporation (“KPIC”), co-owned
by the Permanente Medical Group and Kaiser Foundation Health Plans, began actively
marketing an open-panel PPO. KPIC’s PPO subscribers would access physician services
through athird-party network. With this development, the Kaiser system could offer one-stop
shopping to employers who want to offer their employees a choice between an open-panel PPO
product (one that would allow subscribers to access physicians who are not members of the
Permanente Medical Group), and Kaiser’ straditional closed-panel HMO. Thiswould result in
more competition between ABMG physicians and the Permanente Medical Group in the sale of
physician services through employers.

21. Under a prior contract with the third-party network referenced in Paragraph 20,
the ABMG physicians had agreed to sell their physician services at a discount to payors who
contract to access that network. Inresponseto KPIC'sinitiative, however, ABMG decided, on
behalf of the group, that ABMG physicians would not be available to KPIC’ s subscribers
through the third-party network.

22. In furtherance of this decision, ABMG provided notice to the third-party network
that its prior contract “is hereby amended to state that the physicians who are participating
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physicians of [ABMG] shall not provide services to members of Kaiser Health Plans ... .”
Although ultimately unsuccessful, the sole purpose of this action was to impede competition in
the provision of physician servicesin and around Berkeley and Oakland, California.

RESPONDENT’'S CONDUCT ISNOT LEGALLY JUSTIFIED

23. Respondent’ s negotiation of fees and other competitively significant terms and
concerted refusal to deal on behalf of its competing member physicians, and the agreements,
acts, and practices described above, have not been, and are not, reasonably related to any
efficiency-enhancing integration among the physician members of ABMG.

RESPONDENT'SACTIONSHAVE HAD, OR COULD BE EXPECTED TO HAVE,
SUBSTANTIAL ANTICOMPETITIVE EFFECTS

24. Respondent’ s actions described in Paragraphs 12 through 20 of this Complaint
have had, have tended to have, or if successful would have had, the effect of restraining trade
unreasonably and hindering competition in the provision of physician servicesin and around
Berkeley and Oakland, California, in the following ways, among others:

A. unreasonably restraining price and other forms of competition among
physicians who are members of ABMG;

B. increasing prices for physician services;

C. depriving payors, including insurers and employers, and individual
consumers, of the benefits of competition among physicians; and

D. depriving consumers of the benefits of competition among payors.

25.  The combination, conspiracy, acts, and practices described above constitute unfair
methods of competition in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45. Such combination, conspiracy, acts, and practices, or the effects
thereof, are continuing and will continue or recur in the absence of the relief herein requested.

WHEREFORE, THE PREMISES CONSIDERED, the Federd Trade Commission on
this tenth day of July, 2009, issues its Complaint against Respondent Alta Bates Medical Group,
Inc.

By the Commission.
Donald S. Clark

Secretary
SEAL



